Wickford Design Guidelines Steering Committee Minutes
March 15, 2018

1. Call to order
· The meeting began at 6:30 PM. All steering committee members were present (Jeff Shapiro, Gail Hallock Cyr, Palmer Beebe, Peter Galster, Natalie Coletta, Janelle Feigley and Linda Piedra). Design consultant Richard Youngken was present. Planning Department staff was present (Shaun Lacey, Liz Dolan and Maura Harrington). Planning Department staff noted that the project attorney (Mark Hadden) was unavailable. 
2. Draft Brown Street Wickford Village Design Standards and Guidelines:  Continued review and revisions of all provisions, includes but is not limited to design content, project area and enforcement alternatives, then proceeding to final recommendation(s) to Planning Commission and vote
· Planning Department staff provided an overview of the changes made to the design guidelines since the February 15, 2018 meeting. Edits were made to the title, cover letter, and the section pertaining to mechanical equipment. The design consultant also revised the photos and illustrations and clarified the sections pertaining to permitting requirements. 
· The committee discussed the provisions in the guidelines related to minimizing the visual effects of mechanical equipment and to be sensitive to views from both the street and waterfront. The committee agreed that mechanical, service areas and refuse collection areas should be encouraged to be minimized to the extent reasonable. The design consultant noted that Section 1 of the guidelines sets an expectation related to all building treatments that encourage a consistent application of treatments around the entire building.
· The committee discussed concerns related to the use of illustrative examples applied to existing building on Brown Street. The committee noted that by using illustrative suggestions pertaining to additions and new construction on existing Brown Street buildings could be interpreted as an example of implied consent. The design consultant and staff noted that such examples were common within many design guidelines and were not intended to be interpreted as a literal guide to design review approval. 
· The committee discussed the illustrative example adjacent to the former Town Hall Annex in context with the floodplain regulations, height and the scale of the village. The committee discussed concerns about the maximum footprint (10,000 square feet) and the maximum height (35 feet) permitted within the WVC zone. The committee also expressed concern that the detailed rendering could also be interpreted as a literal guide to design review approval. The committee suggested that the guidelines incorporate less-detailed examples of illustrations to address their concerns about implied consent of design forms and detailing. Staff and the committee agreed that the guidelines are not intended to regulate architectural style.  
· [bookmark: _GoBack]The committee agreed by consensus to recommend reducing the maximum building footprint of 10,000 square feet within the WVC zone to 7,000 square feet, while reducing the special use permit requirement from 5,000 square feet to 4,000 square feet. Staff noted that the committee may vote on that recommendation at their next meeting.
· The committee discussed the provisions in effect that would require design review. The committee stated that all in-kind replacements should be approved administratively. As a point of comparison, staff noted that routine improvements to structures such as window boxes, door hardware, landscaping and the like are not subject to review for properties located with the local historic zoning district. Staff further noted that similar improvements to structures along Brown Street should also be exempt from review. The committee suggested that the guidelines should provide a list of improvements that require a building permit in addition to improvements that require design review.
· For the purposes of determining which properties the design guidelines should be applicable to, staff provided the committee with a series of maps and design review scenarios. Three scenarios were presented for consideration: 1) a map that included all properties on Brown Street as part of the local historic district; 2) a map that included all properties on Brown Street separately from the local historic district; and 3) a map that highlighted all properties zoned WVC, which included all properties on Brown Street, plus additional properties located on West Main Street and Phillips Street. 
· Staff noted that in Scenario 1, Brown Street would fall within the purview of the Historic District Commission pursuant to Article 13 of the zoning ordinance. The design guidelines would become the standard document used for the purposes of design review, which would be administered by the HDC. 
· Staff noted that in Scenario 2, the design guidelines would only be applied to properties located on Brown Street. The design review process would be administered through the development plan review process as referred to within the zoning ordinance. Within Scenario 2, staff provided a flexible option where smaller projects could be reviewed administratively, while substantial additions, new construction and voluntary demolition requests could be reviewed by a design committee. 
· Staff noted that in Scenario 3, the design guidelines would be applied to all properties zoned WVC, which included all properties on Brown Street, plus additional properties located on West Main Street and Phillips Street. The design review process would be administered through the development plan review process as referred to within the zoning ordinance. Similar to Scenario 2, staff provided a flexible option in Scenario 3 where cosmetic and less substantial projects could be reviewed administratively, while large additions, new construction and voluntary demolition requests could be reviewed by a design committee.
· The committee determined that the map should apply to the area covered by the sewer assessment outside of those already located within the local historic district. Staff noted that they will revise the map accordingly and present that back before the committee at the following meeting for a vote. 
· The committee asked how the guidelines and zoning ordinances would be amended in the event that additional properties in the future are added to the sewer assessments. Staff replied that the guidelines and review process would evolve and be amended in response to infrastructural decisions made over time. The committee agreed to not add any other properties into the project area than what was already assessed for sewers. 
· The committee discussed establishing a threshold for what types of projects could be reviewed by staff and those that should be reviewed by the design review committee. The committee determined by consensus that cosmetic improvements and additions less than 120 square feet may be administered by staff, while projects that are more substantial would be administered through the design review committee.  
· The committee agreed that a flexible option should be made available to administer the guidelines between staff and the design review committee. Staff noted that the committee will be asked to vote on such a recommendation at the next meeting. Staff also noted that at the next meeting, the committee will be asked to provide a recommendation on height restrictions in context with the manner in which the floodplain regulations are administered. 
3. Scheduling of next Steering Committee meeting
· The committee agreed to reconvene on April 5. Staff noted that all provisions related to the design guidelines, project area and enforcement alternatives will be presented to the committee for a formal vote and recommendations to the Planning Commission.
4. Minutes
· The committee deferred its review of the minutes to the April 5 meeting.  
5. Public comments
· Larry Ehrhardt stated that property owners should consult with the Planning Department prior to any improvement made onto a building on Brown Street. This conference would therefore provide advisory feedback as to whether the improvement may be handled administratively or must be reviewed at a design committee-level. Mr. Ehrhardt further noted that the design guidelines could become an adopted standard by the HDC should that review body be given the responsibility of administering them. 
· David Wrenn inquired about how fences are handled for the purposes of design review. The design consultant and staff noted that in-kind replacements are dealt with administratively but that material or design changes could warrant a more formal design review process. Mr. Wrenn supported the committee’s recommendation to apply the design guidelines to the sewered properties on Brown Street and Phillips Street. 
· George Brennan inquired if voluntary demolition would be reviewed through the design review process. Staff noted that voluntary demolition applications would be enforced through the development plan review process. 
6. Adjournment
· The meeting adjourned at 9:33 PM.
